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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.:

RICHARD S. LEHMAN, individually
and as the duly appointed Executor

of the Estate of Wilson C. Lucom;
RICHARD S. LEHMAN, P.A ., and the
WILSON C. LUCOM TRUST FUND
FOUNDATION,

Plaintiffs,
Vs,

HILDA PIZA LUCOM,;

MADELAINE ARIAS PIZA;

MARGARITA ARIAS PIZA;

MELINDA ISABEL ARIAS DE MORRICE;
FRANK MORRICE; GILBERTO ARIAS, JR ;
HECTOR INFANTE; EDNA RAMOS CHUE;
INFANTE & PEREZ-ALMILLANO;

JUAN BOSCO MOLINA;

MARTA LUISA CANOLA;

WILLIAM PARODI,

TANYA STERLING BERNAL;

OYDEN ORTEGA; ALBERTO CIGARRUISTA;
HARLEY J. MITCHELL; AND

JOHN DOES | THROUGH 19,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT AND JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Unfiled Notes Page 1

Page 1 of 84



Case 1:11-cv-23479-KMM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/23/2011 Page 2 of 84

TABLE OF CONTENTS

COMPLAINT AND JURY TRIAL DEMAND ........oooiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieiiee e 1
NATURE OF THEICASE .o aussaiunimismmmass s s e i o i oo s s dss S5 8500 e v i sh s 1
INTRODUGCTION vy o s s s s s s i 1
PARTIES AND RELEVANT NON-PARTIES ... ..o 5
SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION AND VENUE...........cccccooviiiiiiiiieicineeieee e 10
PERSONAL: JURISDICTION .o s s s i sy sy i s i S G s st e 10
FACTUAL BASIS FOR CLAIMS .. 11
A. The Wilson C. Lucom Legacy
(D) TGO TS WILL. ... ocoeiinennacansssssesnminesnmmonsessnmnnsssssnnsinmssssinesnsesmonsiiponssitrisens 14
(i1) Lehman’s Appointment — Order 1025 ..., 18
B. The Conspiracy to Steal
(1) The Arias Group’s Conspiracy to Steal Lucom’s Estate Begins. ............ 20

(i) Hilda Moves to Illegally Nullify the Will While Infante Exerts his Power
and Influence to Corrupt the Panamanian Courts. ................ccccoooeveiienn.. 22

(ii1) Theft of Lucom’s Florida Estate Assets - The Valores Bearer Shares... 24
(iv) Interfering With Lehman’s Ancillary Estate Proceeding in Florida ...... 27

C. The Campaign of False Criminal Actions and Defamation

(i) Raising the Ante and Beginning a Campaign of False Criminal

Accusations that Paint Lehman as a Murderer and Gang Leader................. 28
(a) False Murder Charge (Denuncia 1).............ccccvieieniimnriiiniineienineeeesennnn. 29
(b) False Gang and Theft Charges (Denuncia 2) ... 30
(c) False Swindle and Theft Charges (Denuncia 3) ...............ccooiiiiiiii.. 30
(i1) The Attempted Extort and Bribery of Lehman .................................... 31

(iii) A Temporary Set Back — The Dismissal of Lehman’s Murder Charges.33

Unfiled Notes Page 2



Case 1:11-cv-23479-KMM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/23/2011 Page 3 of 84

(iv) Another Set Back — The Superior Court Uphold’s Lehman as Executor 34

(v) Order Appointing Illegal Administrator — Order 229......................... 35
(vi) Campaign of Criminal Charges Continues....................................... 36
(a) False Charge of Stealing Lucom's Estate (Denuncia 4) ........................ 36
(b) False Extortion Charge (Denuncia 5) ... 36
(vii) The International Slander Campaign Against Lehman...................... 37

(viii) Another False Criminal Complaint to Shut Down Lehman’s U.S. Based
Law Firm Website and U.S. Based Website on Lehman’s Efforts to Provide
for the Poor Children of Panama...................................ocooooiiii.. 40

D. The Campaign's Fall-Out

(i) Lehman is Vindicated — But Corruption Leads to False Arrests.............. 41
(ii) False Interpol Red Notice Alerts Calling for Arrests........................ 43
(iii) Lehman’s False Arrest on the Eve of Trial in Florida Surcharge Action
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 40
(iv) A Murder Attempt on Lehman’s Ally........................ 49
(v) Fraud on the Florida Court in the Florida Surcharge Action. ................. 49
E. The Theft of Lucom Assets is Complete
(i) Corruption of the Panamanian Supreme Court. .......................occe. 53
(i1) The Panamanian Ruling is utilized in Florida Surcharge Action............ 56
(i11) The Arias Group Completes its Plan to Steal the Lucom Estate ........... 58
CLAIMS FOR RELIEF = COUNT I = RICO, 18 US.C. § 1962 (€).oooooviiiiiiiii 60
Pattern of Racketeering ... 62

Pattern of Racketeering Activity: Mail Fraud and Wire Fraud in Violation of
IS U.S.Co88 1341, 1343 62

Pattern of Racketeering Activity: Extortion in Violation of Hobbs Act,
IBULBUE. § LI5] iivcimiiicwimiiinimiisiaio st vae et dsvs Foveivatavvass § 60008 b s anaTons 64

Pattern of Racketeering Activity: Extortion in Violation of Section 836.05 of
the Florida Statutes. ... 67

il

Unfiled Notes Page 3



Case 1:11-cv-23479-KMM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/23/2011 Page 4 of 84

Patterns of Racketeering Activity: Money Laundering in Violation of
I8 U.S.C. § 1956 ..o 67

Pattern of Racketeering Activity: Dealing in Stolen Property in Violation of
Section 812.019 of the Florida Statutes...................... 68

Pattern of Racketeering Activity: Witness Tampering in Violation of
LB ULSIC -8 ISA2 i it snss e ot sn i seue’s S5 s bt e dih s B G s S 68

Pattern of Racketeering Activity: Witness Tampering in Violation of
Section 914.22 of the Florida Statutes ... 69

Pattern of Racketeering: Obstruction of Justice in Violation of

I8 U.S.C. § 1503 e 70
Pattern of Racketeering: Obstruction of Justice in Violation of
Section 843.02 of the Florida Statutes ... 71
Pattern of Racketeering: Violation of 18 US.C. § 1952(a)(3)(A)
(the TEAVEL ACL).. it i iy sivaassiise sandiandos i iinanss fushsbnssninsins 72
COUNT II - CONSPIRACY TO VIOLATE RICO, 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d).........ccccooooi. 75
COUNT III - RICO, Fla. Stat. § 895.03 and § 772,104, 76
COUNT IV — UNJUST ENRICHMENT ..o 77
COUNT V — CONVERSION .......ciciivsianiiinioniiiin diaininiiisshaibidivs ieiifasshad fvasbaiias iovasiesiassbading 78
PRAYER FOR RELIEF ... ... 78
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL ... e 80
iv

Unfiled Notes Page 4



Case 1:11-cv-23479-KMM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/23/2011 Page 5 of 84

COMPLAINT AND JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Plaintiffs, Richard S. Lehman, individually and in his capacity as the duly appointed
Executor of the Domiciliary Estate of Wilson C. Lucom (“Lehman”); Richard S. Lehman,
P.A., a duly organized Florida professional association (“Lehman, P.A."), and Wilson C.
Lucom Trust Fund Foundation (“Foundation™), by and through its Sole Trustee, Lucom
World Peace, a Panamanian corporation, sue Defendants and allege as follows:

NATURE OF THE CASE

1. This is an action for damages in excess of Seven Hundred Thirty-Two
Million Dollars ($732,000,000) arising from multiple violations by the Defendants of the
Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organization Act (RICO), 28 U.S.C. § 1961 er. seq.,
involving predicate acts of extortion, mail and wire fraud, money laundering, obstruction of
justice, witness tampering, theft, dealing in stolen property, and multiple violations of the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the Federal Travel Act, as more fully alleged below.
These acts were committed by the Defendants in this District with the assistance of others,
known and unknown, with the singular purpose of stealing for themselves the vast fortune
of Wilson C. Lucom, deceased, who left that fortune through his Last Will and Testament,
to his Foundation for the benefit of the poor and needy children of the Republic of Panama.

INTRODUCTION

2. This action involves a criminal conspiracy targeting the Plaintiffs and
conducted by Defendants in Florida and abroad. This Complaint details how a group of
U.S. and Panamanian individuals, lawyers, judges and prosecutors set about to fraudulently
loot millions of dollars from a decedent’s estate, and destroy the estate’s Executor’s ability

to carry out the decedent’s wishes, the primary directive being to use the estate’s millions
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to feed the poor children of Panama. The criminal conspiracy had one objective: thwart the
only person who was appointed the Executor of the Estate of Wilson C. Lucom (the
“Estate”), through acts of intimidation extortion, corruption, theft, money laundering, and
bribery of foreign officials, so that the Defendants could steal the Estate assets for
themselves. The Defendants’ criminal conspiracy could not succeed (even as it continues
today) absent the combined acts of the Defendants in the United States, Panama and the
British Virgin Islands.

3. Plaintiff Lehman is the person appointed the Executor (“Albacea™) of the
Estate of Wilson C. Lucom. The conspirators’ goals were to destroy Lehman financially,
destroy his reputation and interfere in every way imaginable with Lehman’s legal
obligations and duties to protect and distribute Lucom’s assets in accordance with Lucom’s
written Will. In effect, the RICO Defendants planned to control the proceeds of the Lucom
Estate, shutting out the Executor, overriding Lucom’s bequest to feed the poor, and setting
themselves up as the sole recipients of the assets of the Estate. In Panama, the conspirators
used the criminal justice system and corrupt prosecutors to falsely charge Lehman, a 41
year member in good standing of the Florida Bar, with 15 crimes, including murder, and to
illegally arrest Lehman and his lawyer, causing Lehman and the professionals hired to
assist him to fear for their lives in Panama, the United States and abroad, to avoid travel
from Florida to Panama, thereby thwarting Lehman in his efforts to fulfill his duties as
Executor. Following the eventual dismissal of the corrupt criminal charges against him and
without any charges pending, the conspirators then arranged to have the Panama branch of
Interpol illegally black-list Lehman and his lawyer by placing them on “Red Notice Alert,”

naming Lehman and his lawyer as dangerous criminals in 170 countries, including in the

-2
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United States, resulting in Lehman being escorted off of a commercial airplane bound for
Florida and detained in Panamanian jail on multiple occasions. The conspirators also
abused the Panamanian civil justice system by bribing judges in order to obtain various
rulings and orders adverse to Lehman and the Estate. Some of these corrupt rulings were
then falsely touted by Defendants and introduced in evidence in legal proceedings in
Florida as though they were legitimate dispositive court orders from Panama.

4. In Panama, a corrupt civil Panamanian Probate Judge and an illegally
appointed administrator prevented Lehman from protecting the Estate’s main Panamanian
asset and the Estate’s Florida bank and securities accounts. Through the Defendants
conspiracy, the Estate’s 7,000 acre ranch that lines the Pacific Ocean, appraised at
$145,000,000 (and currently valued at $175,000,000), has been gutted by Defendants. The
administrator appointed by a corrupted judge in Panama conspired with other Defendants to
steal the ranch’s 110 beachfront acres and loot proceeds in the Estate’s Panamanian bank
accounts. On a parallel tract in Florida, Defendants introduced in a Florida Court
proceeding illegal and unconstitutional Panamanian Probate Court Orders, obtained by
Defendants through bribery and corruption, in order to ruin Lehman’s reputation, law
practice, and thwart Lehman’s efforts to protect the Florida Estate assets from being looted
by Defendants. This left the Estate exposed to Defendants’ theft of the most valuable assets
in Florida worth almost $6 Million.

5 Lehman ultimately had all of the Panamanian illegal lower court orders
overruled, suspended, or successfully challenged, and has been continually approved by the
Intermediate Appellate Courts of Panama as the Executor/Albacea of the Estate.

Nevertheless, the conspirators bribed a panel of three Justices of the Panamanian Supreme
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Court, the highest Court in the land, who rendered an opinion rewriting Lucom’s Will. The
corrupt Opinion of the Supreme Court of Panama purports to appoint Lucom’s widow,
Defendant Hilda Piza Lucom (“Hilda”) Executor of the Estate retroactively to the initial
probate filing and then declares Hilda the “universal heir” of the Estate. This corrupt
Opinion has been stayed by an en banc panel of the entire Supreme Court of Panama.
Furthermore, this Opinion is the subject of a nullification action in Panama by a
Panamanian Public Prosecutor. All three of the corrupt Justices are the subject of two
criminal complaints in the Panamanian Congress, including one that was launched by the
Panamanian Notary that witnessed and transcribed Lucom’s Will.

6. The corruption by the Defendants of the Panamanian judicial system is not
mere speculation. The actual meeting with one of the Supreme Court Justices on the Panel,
where Hilda's lawyer offered and negotiated a $1.5 million bribe to each Justice of the
Panel, occurred in the presence of two other lawyers. Once the corrupt Opinion became
public, and the grotesque and obvious corruption became vox populi in all Panama, the
U.S. State Department stepped in and revoked the U.S. visas of the three Justices of the
Supreme Court of Panama, who rendered the corrupt Opinion. Further, since at least 2009,
multiple cables were issued by the United States Ambassador to Panama regarding the
corruption in the Panamanian judiciary. Notwithstanding these recent events, the illegal
and corrupt orders and decisions, while they pended for years, permitted the Defendants
ample time to steal the assets of the Estate and, through a malicious media campaign of
defamation, Defendants ruined (and continue to ruin) Lehman’s and Lehman, P.A’s

business, professional reputation, and standing in the community.
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PARTIES AND RELEVANT NON-PARTIES

Plaintiffs:

78 Richard S. Lehman (“Lehman™), is an adult resident of Palm Beach, Florida,
and is an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Florida. Lehman was named
in the Last Will and Testament of Wilson C. Lucom as one of the Executors of Lucom’s
Estate. On July 5, 2006, shortly after the death of Wilson C. Lucom in Panama, Lehman
was appointed the sole Executor of the Wilson C. Lucom Estate (“Lucom Estate”) in
Panama. Lehman was thereupon duly sworn and installed as Executor and has continued to
be the sole Executor of the Lucom Estate to this date.

8. Richard S. Lehman, P.A. (“Lehman, P.A.”) has been since 1984, and
continuing to this day, a duly incorporated professional association in the State of Florida
with its principal place of business located at 6018 S.W. 18" Street, Suite C1, Boca Raton,
Florida 33433.

9. Wilson C. Lucom Trust Fund Foundation (“Lucom Foundation™) was
registered on May 26, 2006 as a trust in the island of Nevis, British West Indies, and later
domesticated as a Panamanian trust. The sole trustee of the Lucom Foundation is Lucom
World Peace, S.A., a duly incorporated company in the Republic of Panama. Pursuant to
the terms of Lucom’s Will, his Executors were also named the trustees of his Foundation
and were charged with the duty of managing the Foundation for the benefit of the poor and
needy children of Panama. Thus, Lehman is also the sole director of Lucom World Peace,

S.A_, which is the sole trustee of the Lucom Foundation.
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